
Page 1 of 1 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2021 

5:30 PM AT CITY HALL AND VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE 

 

 
 
The City is providing in-person and electronic options for this meeting in accordance with the Governor's 
Proclamation of Disaster Emergency regarding meetings and hearings. The City encourages in-person attendees 
to follow the latest CDC guidelines to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. 
 
The meeting will also be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the meeting in 
the following ways: 

a) By dialing the phone number +1 312 626 6799  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 346 248 
7799  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 886 
2008 9534. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,88620089534#  or +19292056099,,88620089534# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88620089534.  
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes of September 8, 2021 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

2. Rezoning from R-1 Residence District and C-2 Commercial District to C-2 Commercial District 
(RZ21-007)  
Location: 5424 University Avenue 
Owner: KMTR Properties LLC  Applicant: Chris Cummings, Turnkey Associates  
Previous discussion: September 8, 2021 
Recommendation: Approval 
P&Z Action: Hold public hearing and make a recommendation to City Council  

New Business - None 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* October 13 and October 27, 2021 - Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* October 4 and October 18, 2021 - City Council Meetings 

1



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

September 8, 2021 
In person and via videoconference  

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on September 8, 2021 at 
5:30 p.m. at City Hall and via videoconference due to precautions necessary to prevent the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus. The following Commission members were present: Hartley, Larson, Leeper, 
Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, Schrad and Sears. Holst was absent. Karen Howard, Planning & Community 
Services Manager, Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, Michelle Pezley, Planner III, Jaydevsinh Atodaria, 
Planner I and Chris Sevy, Planner I, were also present. Chair Leeper noted that it was Abby Sears’ 
last night on the Commission and thanked her for her service. 
 
1.) Chair Leeper noted the Minutes from the August 25, 2021 regular meeting are presented. Ms. 

Saul made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, 
Saul, Schrad and Sears), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was a Land Use Map Amendment from Medium Density Residential 

to Community Commercial; and Rezoning from A-1: Agricultural District, C-2: Commercial 
District, and S-1: Shopping Center District  to PC-2: Planned Commercial District. Chair 
Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided a brief refresher regarding the item as 
it has come before the Commission at previous meetings. He discussed the current and 
proposed zoning for the area and noted that staff recommends amending the Future Land Use 
Map from Medium Density Residential to Community Commercial. He noted that the 
documents have been updated since the meeting in July to clear up inconsistencies in the plan 
and discussed potential land uses in the area. Mr. Weintraut displayed the updated Master 
Site Plan for the Thunder Ridge area and discussed the list of potential land uses as well as 
standards to address the appearance of buildings with multiple views. Staff is satisfied with the 
ways that inconsistencies have been addressed. He also pointed out that critical infrastructure 
and development phasing are concerns staff has had and discussed solutions that staff has 
offered to remedy those concerns. Staff recommends that the land use amendment be made 
and approval of the rezoning request subject to a Developmental Agreement that includes one 
of the suggested solutions to ensure Lake Ridge Drive is extended.  

 
 Wendell Lupkes, VJ Engineering, 1501 Technology Parkway, provided background history 

with regard to the location. He stated his issues with the extension of Lake Ridge Drive and 
the timing that has been recommended by staff. He stated the extension of Lake Ridge Drive 
is critical, but the timing of construction is at issue. He also questioned what ordinances allow 
for the imposition to be made. Mr. Lupkes stated the extension of Lake Ridge Drive should be 
handled through the subdivision process. 

 
 Mr. Leeper asked for clarification on the extension of Lake Ridge Drive and if it is considered 

critical infrastructure. Staff and the developer stated that they both feel it is critical and Ms. 
Howard reiterated the acceptable solutions and that staff just needs a recommendation from 
the Commission based on whether the extension of Lake Ridge Drive is critical infrastructure. 
Mr. Leeper then confirmed that all were in agreement that the extension of Lake Ridge Drive 
was critical infrastructure.   

 
 Chris Wendland, Clark, Butler, Walsh & Hamann, 315 East 5th Street, Waterloo, spoke to 

2

Item 1.



 2 

support the applicant and the legal agreements made in the past and reiterated the extension 
of Lake Ridge Drive through the subdivision process.  

 
 Ms. Howard stated that the City had no legal counsel at the meeting to address the legal 

agreements and whether the characterization is accurate, but stressed that the current request 
at this time is rezoning action. She clarified that the developer has no rights to develop the 
property under the PC-2 zoning designation unless the property is rezoned. At the time of 
rezoning action, reasonable conditions can be applied to any rezoning actions that are related 
to the development of the property. At this time the Commission is being asked whether to 
rezone the property, not a quasi-judicial decision with regard to a platting in the future.  

 
 Ms. Saul stated that she feels that it is a reasonable request by the applicant.  
  
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item with the phasing as proposed. Mr. Schrad 

seconded the motion.  
 
 Mr. Hartley asked for clarity on staff recommendation. 
 
 Ms. Howard state the staff recommendation was to approve with one of the three options for 

extending the road.  Ms. Howard asked for clarification of Ms. Saul’s motion. 
 
 Ms. Saul stated the recommendation was to approve the land use amendment and the 

rezoning not subject to the three street extension options. 
 
 Mr. Leeper asked for clarification on the future of the street. 
 
 Ms. Howard stated action was to approve a planned development zoning district with 

consideration of the installation of the infrastructure.    
 
 After additional discussion, the motion was to approve the rezoning and land use change 

based on the development phasing plan submitted by the applicant. 
  
 The motion was approved with 5 ayes (Hartley, Larson, Saul, Schrad and Sears), and 3 nays 

(Leeper, Lynch and Prideaux). 
 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was a rezoning request for property 

located at 515 and 523 W. 2nd Street. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that the item was presented to the 
Commission at the previous two meetings and the hearing was continued to the current 
meeting at the applicant’s request to allow the developer to prepare materials for the meeting. 
The applicant brought an exhibit with him to the meeting, which was handed out to the 
Commission. Ms. Howard noted that since staff did not have the materials prior to the meeting, 
they have not been reviewed by staff.  She noted that the item on the agenda is to rezone the 
property from R-4, Residential to C-2, Commercial and is not for consideration of a specific 
site plan.  Criteria for approval would include consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. She 
noted that the request is not consistent with the adopted Downtown Vision Plan and is counter 
to the rezoning to Downtown Character District recommended by the Commission and 
currently under consideration at City Council.  Ms. Howard discussed the zoning being 
proposed at City Council. Staff recommends denial of the rezoning as the request is 
inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan, specifically the recently adopted Imagine 
Downtown Vision Plan.  

 
 Jim Benda, 1816 Valley High Drive, spoke on behalf of the applicant and discussed plans that 

were provided just before the meeting. He stated that he would understand if the item should 

3

Item 1.



 3 

need to be moved to the next meeting to allow staff and the Commission to review the 
documents. He also described what was shown on the document he handed out.   

 
 Mr. Schrad noted that rezoning the property to C-2 would not necessarily mean that a Wendy’s 

would be built on the site. Anything allowed in the C-2 zone would be permitted. 
 
 Mr. Larson asked what consideration has been given for projects like this one based on the 

new zoning ordinance. Mr. Benda stated that they are trying to create a buffer between 
residential and commercial. Mr. Larson stated mixed feelings regarding the project.  

  
 Mr. Leeper noted that he is not against a Wendy’s, but that the request to rezone the 

properties along 2nd Street was not consistent with the community’s adopted vision. He noted 
that the fact that this particular suburban model of a Wendy’s does not fit perhaps is an 
indicator that a different model should be considered in this location.  

 
 Ms. Prideaux indicated similar concerns about the rezoning.  
 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Schrad seconded the motion. The motion 

was denied with 4 ayes (Hartley, Larson, Saul and Schrad), and 4 nays (Leeper, Lynch, 
Prideaux and Sears). 

 
4.) The Commission then considered a land use amendment and rezoning request for property at 

the northwest corner of the intersection of Cedar Heights Drive and Valley High Drive. Chair 
Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Larson recused himself from the discussion and vote. Mr. 
Sevy explained that the request is to rezone the property from C-1, Commercial to RP, 
Planned Residential to allow for six,12-plex multi-unit dwellings and to amend the future land 
use map. The item is being brought before the Commission for a public hearing. Staff finds 
that the amount of commercial and office use indicated on the land use map may be excessive 
given the lower traffic volume and more attractive locations for such development in other 
areas of the City. Additional residential development will also create more demand for nearby 
retail and commercial services. Staff feels that it would be appropriate to change the Future 
Land Use Map from Office/Business Park to Medium Density Residential. 

 
 Mr. Sevy discussed the rezoning criteria, which includes consistency with the Future Land Use 

Map, utilities that are readily available to the site and access to Cedar Heights and Valley High 
Drives. All criteria are met. He discussed neighborhood concerns and how each will be 
addressed. He also noted that concessions have been made since the signing of petitions in 
May of 2020, and that the petition may not accurately represent the current sentiment of all 
who signed it over a year ago. Mr. Sevy provided reasons why staff feels this zoning change 
would be a better fit in this area and the conditions of the rezoning. He provided a rendering of 
the developer’s plans to address line of sight issues as well as plans to manage stormwater. 
Staff recommends approval of the amendment of the Future Land Use Map and the rezoning 
of the property RP, according to the master plan submitted.  

 
 Dan Levi, Levi Architecture, 1009 Technology Parkway, stated that issues that were brought 

forward fourteen months ago have been addressed. He provided information about the 
developer and their standards for the development. He also explained that these will not be 
apartments or rentals, but will be condos that are owner-occupied, and addressed sight line 
and stormwater concerns.  

 
 Richard Pint, 2629 Orchard Drive, Apt. 2, spoke regarding the need for higher quality housing.  
 
 Brian Page, 3325 Waterbury Drive, spoke as a real estate broker to the need for affordable 

high quality housing in Cedar Falls. He noted that there is a lack of high quality options for this 

4

Item 1.



 4 

price range in the community. He feels the project could only improve the community.  
 
 Steve Umthun, 4102 Legacy Lane, Unit 4, thanked the Commission for their work. He asked if 

there would be a chance for input with regard to the site plan at a later date. Mr. Leeper 
clarified that there would. 

 
 John Lane, 3909 Legacy Lane, stated that Mr. Sevy did a phenomenal job and that he 

answered most of the questions he’s had. He asked if he would be dealing with LGC or 
Heartland Development if there are problems. Mr. Sevy clarified that Heartland Development 
is the seller of the property and LGC is the applicant for the project and will be the builder. Mr. 
Lane also stated that he believes that the majority of people who signed the petition have 
changed their minds and are in support of the project, but he wants assurances that if the 
project is not done as promised he knows who is legally responsible.  

 
 Juble Sloan, HOA president of the Valley High Condo association, stated that he is happy with 

the work the developer has done to accommodate neighbors and he is in support of the 
project. 

 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved with 7 ayes (Hartley, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, Schrad and Sears), and 0 
nays and 1 abstention (Larson). 

 
5.) The next item of business was a Central Business District Overlay Design Review for 215 

Main Street. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Pezley provided background 
information. She explained that the applicant is proposing a black fabric awning be placed 
above the entrance. As all criteria are met, staff recommends approval. 

 
 Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Sears seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, 
Schrad and Sears), and 0 nays. 

 
6.)  The next item for consideration by the Commission was a minor plat for Lots 18, 19 and 20 of 

Sands Addition. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background 
information. He explained that the property owner of 4224, 4232 and 4302 James Drive, 
proposes to re-subdivide the three parcels into two larger parcels. All easement requirements 
are met and staff recommends approval of the plat. 

 
 Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, 
Schrad and Sears), and 0 nays. 

 
7.) The Commission then considered a rezoning request for property at 5424 University Avenue. 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He 
explained that the property is on University Avenue next to Happy Hippo Car Wash. The 
applicant would like to rezone the property from R-1, Residential and C-2, Commercial to C-2, 
Commercial to remove split zoning and expand the commercial use of the property. While 
criteria for the project are met, there are concerns with the adjacent drainage way and loss of 
a visual buffer. Staff recommends the existing vegetation be maintained to the extent possible 
and plant additional screening to create a visual buffer between the commercial use and the 
adjacent single family home. Parking lot screening requirements will also need to be added. 
Mr. Atodaria explained that there were technical comments from staff that need to be 
addressed by the applicant. CFU notes that gas service, three-phase electrical and 
communication fiber lines in the new construction area will have to be relocated at the owner’s 
expense. Stormwater improvements should also be done as per the city standard to avoid any 

5

Item 1.



 5 

nuisance issues. The legal description of the entire lot needs to be corrected and the zoning 
exhibit should be updated accordingly. The applicant is working to submit the revised site plan 
with setbacks, landscaping information and incorporate staff’s comments. 

 
 Mr. Atodaria noted that staff has received an updated plan from the applicant that addresses 

the stormwater issues Engineering staff recommended. Staff recommends setting a date of 
public hearing for September 22 to consider the request. He also noted that he received a call 
from a neighbor who had complaints regarding the noise that is made at the property as well 
as concerns about stormwater drainage.  

 
 Chris Cummings, Turnkey Associates, 3015 Greyhoud Drive, Waterloo, presented information 

for the applicant regarding the proposed expansion of the commercial use and explained how 
they would address the screening and drainage.  

 
 Tom Morris, 2015 Terrace Drive neighbor, stated that he would request that the trees between 

his property and the location not be removed. Mr. Cummings stated that the trees actually 
belong to the Happy Hippo Car Wash and are not part of this property, so there would be no 
removal of the trees on the other property with this project.  

 
 Ms. Lynch made a motion to set the public hearing date. Ms. Sears seconded the motion. The 

motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, 
Saul, Schrad and Sears), and 0 nays. 

 
8.) As there were no further comments, Ms. Lynch made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Hartley 

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Hartley, Larson, 
Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, Schrad and Sears), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:17 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Assistant 
 

6

Item 1.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria, City Planner I 

  Ben Claypool, PhD, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: September 16, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request for Direct Appliance at 5424 University Ave (RZ21-007) 
  Land Use Map Amendment (LU20-002) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from R-1, Residential Zoning District and C-2, Commercial 
Zoning District to C-2, Commercial Zoning District. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

KMTR Properties LLC, Owner / Chris Cummings, Turnkey Associates, 
Architects 
 

LOCATION: 
 

5424 University Avenue 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The current owner of Direct Appliance has requested to rezone a 1.38 acres parcel (60,113SF) 
property located at 5424 University Avenue, which currently has split zoning from the R-1, 
Residential Zoning District and C-2, Commercial Zoning District to C-2, Commercial Zoning 
District to expand the existing commercial use of the property.  
 
BACKGROUND 
KMTR Properties LLC owns the subject property. 
This parcel was purchased in 2008 with an 
existing one-story building built in 1976 and a 
detached accessory structure built in 1988 to 
operate as a commercial retail property. In 
addition, there were some building additions done 
by the owner in 2008 after the purchase of the 
property. And currently, the property is being used 
for a retail business of “Direct Appliance”.    
 

7

Item 2.



2 
 

The subject property at 5424 University Avenue is Lot 1 of Fogdall University Avenue Minor Plat 
No.1 which was platted in 2006. And the property has split zoning with the eastern 3/4th area of 
the lot in the C-2 Commercial District and the western 1/4th area of the lot in the R-1 Residence 
District. The applicant wishes to expand the business into the R-1 portion of the property, so is 
requesting to rezone the property so that the entire lot is within the C-2 Commercial District to 
comply with the zoning.  
 
The property west of the subject property is in the R-1 Zoning district and the property east of 
the subject property is in the C-2 zoning district.  It is unclear why this particular property has 
split zoning, although there have been a number of property divisions and subdivisions that may 
not have coincided with the zoning boundaries.  
 
If the petitioner’s request to rezone the property to C-2 zone is approved, the intent is to expand 
the existing use of the property by making building additions as per the attached site plan and 
expanding the paved area to the west to allow maneuvering of semi-trucks for loading and 
uploading. A site plan is attached with the packet that shows the proposal for the site.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Existing and Proposed Zoning 
The request is to rezone 1.38 acres of land located at 5424 University Avenue from R-1, 
Residential Zoning District and C-2, Commercial Zoning District to C-2, Commercial Zoning 
District.  
 
The R-1 Residential District allows residential use in the form of one- and two-unit dwellings, 
churches, and private noncommercial recreational areas. This zone does not allow 
commercial activity. The C-2 Commercial District allows a variety of commercial uses including 
but not limited to retail stores of all types, financial institutions, automobiles sales, veterinary 
clinics, bowling alleys, drive-in restaurants, laundries, offices, printing shops, restaurants, mini-
storage warehouses, and similar.  
 
Currently, the property is being used for household appliance sales and repair, which is an 
allowed use in the C-2 Commercial Zoning District. The owner of the property intends to 
continue expanding the similar use on the property. City staff notes that once the property is 
rezoned, it can have any commercial use allowed as per the C-2 zoning district in the future. A 
property with split zoning creates uncertainty for the property owner and for surrounding 
properties as to its use and development, so is good practice to change the zoning so the entire 
lot is within the same zone.  The current request aligns with the intent to continue the 
development of the land for similar use as per the site plan proposal.  
 
Adjacency between R-1 and C-2 Zoning 
While it is not preferable to have a property with split zoning, in this case it has in effect created 
a more significant buffer between the commercial use and the single family home on the 
abutting property.  Rezoning the western portion to C-2 will allow the commercial use to expand 
into an area where there is a drainageway, significant vegetation, and large overstory trees that 
create a significant visual and physical buffer between the uses. Staff recommends that if 
rezoned and the paved area expanded in this direction that stormwater management be 
carefully considered and that any loss of trees or vegetation be replaced to create an effective 

8

Item 2.



3 
 

screen between the commercial activity and the abutting residential property. With any rezoning 
the Commission has the discretion to impose reasonable conditions to mitigate for any potential 
negative effects caused by the rezoning. Staff is supportive of the rezoning, but notes the 
following:  

 As per code, the minimum setback requirement for the C-2 zoning district is 10 feet from 
any abutting residential zoning district. However, if the truck turn around area encroaches 
this close to the property boundary it may result in loss of a significant portion of the 
existing vegetation and large overstory trees.    

 As per code minimum six feet high screen consisting of a fence, wall, or plant material of 
mature height must be installed to screen the property. Staff notes that the commercial 
property is at a higher elevation than the residential property, so a taller landscaping 
screen would be warranted between the paved area and the west property line, 
particularly if there is significant loss of the existing vegetation and trees.  

 All parking lots and vehicular use areas of the commercial property must have peripheral 
landscape screening from the adjacent properties and the public right-of-way. The 
applicant has indicated that they will provide the necessary peripheral screening, 
including along University Avenue.  

 The drainageway along the western edge of the subject property for stormwater will need 
to be maintained as per city standards. City staff notes that the applicant must comply 
with all stormwater requirements so there is no increase in stormwater flows on adjacent 
properties due to expansion of the impervious surfaces on the lot (new paving and 
buildings). Engineering staff have made some recommendations, which are noted in the 
technical comments below.  

 
Zoning considerations normally involves evaluation of three main criteria: 

 Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map in the City’s Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property 
is designated for Community Commercial use. With the proposed area to be rezoned to 
expand the commercial use, the Future Land Use Map will not need to be amended for 
the property, as the property is currently under the right designation. See excerpt from 
the Future Land Use Map below with properties labeled.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9

Item 2.



4 
 

 Available access to Public Services (Sewer, water, and electricity) 
The property is located in a developed area of the city and has access to all the utilities 
on site.  

 Available adequate roadway access 
The property does have roadway access from University Avenue. 
 

Public Notice: 
Notice of the rezoning proposal was mailed to the adjoining property owners on 1st September 
2021. A public hearing notice was also published in Waterloo Cedar Falls Courier on September 
16, 2021. 
 
Technical Comments: 
City staff including the City Engineering Division and Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed 
the rezoning request. CFU notes that there is a gas service, three-phase electrical and 
communication fiber lines in the new construction area as per the applicant’s site plan proposal 
and those will have to be relocated by CFU at the owner’s expense. See image below for 
reference. 

 
Stormwater Improvements: The Engineering Division notes, while not triggering the post-
construction stormwater control ordinance, the additional retaining wall and truck turn around 
pavement is shown to slope to the north-west and allow all newly placed impervious area to 
dump though a curb-cut at the top of the retaining wall. While the plan view of this new 
impervious area is ok, the City has requested that the new concrete is to be placed with a slope 
draining towards an area intake (SW-511 per SUDAS) and then piped into the closest storm 

10

Item 2.



5 
 

water intake along University Avenue. The grading of the new impervious area should collect all 
new storm water into the intake, allowing only storm events greater than the 100 year overflow 
to flow north-west toward the adjacent properties. This would prevent any stormwater issues 
related to the City’s nuisance code. See image above for reference. 
 
In addition to the technical comments from CFU and Engineering above, City staff notes that the 
following should be addressed by the applicant:  

 Need the correct legal description of the entire lot as the lot has been previously platted. 
Received and updated. 

 Since there is no established legal description of the zoning boundary line, the entirety of 
the lot as legally established should be rezoned to C-2. Update the zoning exhibit 
accordingly with the established legal description of the entire lot. Received and updated. 

 The applicant will be submitting a revised site plan with correct setbacks and is working 
to determine what trees and vegetation will need to be removed to establish the truck 
turn-around. If significant loss of the trees and landscaping is anticipated, Staff 
recommends establishing a new landscaping buffer that will create an effective screen 
between the commercial activity on the lot and the abutting residential property, such as 
columnar arborvitae. Received and updated. However, staff recommends planting 
arborvitaes along the western property line as it grows faster and taller. Staff believes 
that inclusion of such plantings would provide substantive screening to adjacent 
residential property. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the case RZ21-007, a request to rezone a 1.38 acre parcel 
located at 5424 University Avenue from R-1, Residential District and C-2, Commercial District to 
C-2, Commercial District.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
& 
Discussion  
9/8/2021 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information. He explained that the property is on University Avenue next to 
Happy Hippo Car Wash. The applicant would like to rezone the property from 
R-1, Residential and C-2, Commercial to C-2, Commercial to remove split 
zoning and expand the commercial use of the property. While criteria for the 
project are met, there are concerns with the adjacent drainage way and loss 
of a visual buffer. Staff would like the existing vegetation to be maintained and 
add screening to be added to create a visual buffer. Parking lot screening 
requirements will also need to be added. Mr. Atodaria explained that there 
were technical comments from staff that needs to be addressed by the 
applicant. CFU notes that gas service, three-phase electrical and 
communication fiber lines in the new construction area will have to be 
relocated at the owner’s expense. Stormwater improvements should also be 
done as per the city standard to avoid any city nuisance issues. The legal 
description of the entire lot needs to be corrected and the zoning exhibit 
should be updated accordingly. The applicant is working to submit the revised 
site plan with setbacks, landscaping information and incorporate staff’s 
comments. 

Mr. Atodaria noted that staff has received an updated plan from the applicant 

11

Item 2.



6 
 

that addresses the stormwater issues staff had. Staff recommends setting a 
date of public hearing for September 22 to consider the request. He stated 
that a call was received with complaints regarding the noise that is made at 
the property as well as the drainage way.  

Chris Cummings, Turnkey Associates, 3015 Greyhound Drive, Waterloo, 
explained the issues that were addressed and how they are to be handled. 

Tom Morris, 2015 Terrace Drive neighbor, stated that he would request that 
the trees between his property and the location not be removed. Mr. 
Cummings stated that the trees actually belong to the Happy Hippo Car Wash 
and are not part of this property.  

Ms. Lynch made a motion to set the public hearing date. Ms. Sears seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Hartley, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, Schrad and Sears), and 0 nays. 

 
  

 

Attachments: Location Map 
  Rezoning Plat  
  Site Plan 

   

12

Item 2.



Kuehns Park

University Ave Trail

â

â

â

â
â

â

Hil
lcre

st D
r

Rown d St

Bicentennial Dr

Acorn Ln
Pleasant D r

Terrace Dr

Edgewood Dr

Mc
Cla

in Dr

University Ave

R-4

C-2

MPCS-1

R-1

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
September 8, 2021

Direct Appliance Rezoning
from R-1 to C-2
5424 University Avenue

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



8
'
-
0
"

6
'
-
0
"

14'-8"

SHEET NUMBER:

T
H

I
S

 
P

L
A

N
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

I
N

G
 
T

H
E

 
D

E
S

I
G

N

A
N

D
 
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

,
 
I
S

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y

O
F

 
T

U
R

N
K

E
Y

 
A

S
S

O
C

I
A

T
E

S
,
 
L

.
C

.

A
N

D
 
I
S

 
P

R
O

T
E

C
T

E
D

 
U

N
D

E
R

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T

 
L

A
W

.
 
U

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
I
Z

E
D

U
S

E
 
I
S

 
S

T
R

I
C

T
L

Y
 
P

R
O

H
I
B

I
T

E
D

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
2

0
2

1

B
Y

 
T

U
R

N
K

E
Y

 
A

S
S

O
C

I
A

T
E

S
,
 
L

.
C

.

C

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

0
5
-
0
3
-
2
0
2
1

D
A

T
E

 
I
S

S
U

E
D

:

PROJECT NUMBER:

3015 GREYHOUND DRIVE
WATERLOO, IA 50701

PHONE:  319-232-4242
FAX:  319-232-3793

21001

W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
 
E

X
P

A
N

S
I
O

N

F
O

R

C
E

D
A

R
 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
A

D
I
R

E
C

T
 
A

P
P

L
I
A

N
C

E

N

SCALE:

SITE PLAN

1 " = 20 ' - 0 " 

1

AS101

AS101

I
P

C
H

C
M

C

SITE PLAN

EXISTING APPLIANCE SHOWROOM

EXISTING OFFICE/SALES

EXISTING SERVICE

EXISTING

STORAGE

2,816 SF

UNIVERSITY AVENUE

291.93'

1

7

6

.
2

8

'

5

1

.

0

3

'

5

7

.

3

6

'

224.71'

2
2
8
.
2
9
'

25' SETBACK LINE

1

0

'
 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

 
L

I
N

E

10' SETBACK LINE

1

0

'

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

 

L

I

N

E

10' SETBACK LINE

1
0
'
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 
L
I
N

E

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

:
 
0
8
-
1
7
-
2
0
2
1

NEW

ASSEMBLY/PREP/LOADING

2,240 SF

EXISTING MATTRESS SHOWROOM

A301

3

TOTAL EXISTING PAVING: 26,732 SF

PROPOSED NEW PAVING: 3,808 SF

SCREENING SHRUBS -

MAXIMUM 4' HEIGHT

NEW

STORAGE

1,194 SF

100'-0"

95'-8"

95'-4"

99'-6 3/4"98'-6"

99'-2 1/2"

98'-0"

98'-3"

98'-7 1/2"

98'-9 1/2"100'-0"

99'-6"

100'-0"

98'-8"

98'-6"

98'-3"

2' W. OVERFLOW

CURB CUT FOR

DRAINAGE

RETAINING WALL

RETAINING WALL

RETAINING WALL

- TAPER TO END

OF PAVING

SW-511 INTAKE -

CONNECT TO

EXISTING STORM

INTAKE AT

UNIVERSITY

AVENUE CURB

AREA DRAIN FOR

LOADING DOCK -

CONNECT TO

SW-511 INTAKE

BASIN

AREA DRAIN FOR

LOADING DOCK -

PIPE TO

DRAINAGE BASIN

AT NORTHWEST

CORNER OF

PROPERTY -

DAYLIGHT DRAIN

WITH RIP RAP

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

:
 
0
9
-
0
3
-
2
0
2
1

SCREENING SHRUBS AS

REQ'D TO REPLACE ANY

EXISTING PLANTINGS THAT

GET REMOVED - MINIMUM 6'

HEIGHT

SCREENING SHRUBS -

MAXIMUM 4' HEIGHT

15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.


	Top
	Item 1.	P&Z minutes
	09-08-2021 P and Z Minutes

	Item 2.	Rezoning for Direct Appliance from R-1 and C-2 to C-2 at 5424 University Avenue (RZ21-007)
	1_PZ Staff Report for Direct Appliance
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. Direct Appliance Plat Map revised
	4. Direct Appliance Revised Site Plan 09-03-2021
	5. Letter from neighbor to P&amp;Z Commission

	Bottom

